2061 Cove Rd, Hayes, VA 23072 to 8169 Riverview
Dr, Gloucester, VA 23061

Drive 25.4 miles, 36 min

July 8, 2020 WB/CB Meeting Site Directions

Map data ©2020 Google

1) 2061 Cove Rd
Hayes, VA 23072

Follow Cove Rd, Circle Dr and State Rte 699/Lillaston Ln to
VA-216 W/Guinea Rd
3 min (1.0 mi)

1.

Head south on Cove Rd toward Circle Dr
0.3 mi

2.

Turn right onto Circle Dr
0.1 mi

3.

Turn right to stay on Circle Dr
0.2 mi

4.

Turn right onto State Rte 699/Lillaston Ln
0.4 mi

Take US-17 N and VA-14 E/VA-3 W to State Rte 608 in
Petsworth
28 min (22.1 mi)

5.

Turn left onto VA-216 W/Guinea Rd
Pass by Advance Auto Parts (on the right in 1.6 mi)
1.6 mi

6.

Turn right onto US-17 N
8.9 mi

2 mi

7.

Turn right onto Main St
1.3 mi

8.

Turn right onto VA-14 E/VA-3 W
5.8 mi

9.

Turn left onto State Rte 602
2.4 mi

10.

Slight left onto VA-198 W
2.1 mi

Continue on State Rte 608. Drive to Riverview Dr
5 min (2.3 mi)

11.

Turn right onto State Rte 608
1.9 mi

12.

Turn left onto Bristow Dr
0.3 mi

13.

Continue onto Riverview Dr
Destination will be on the left
0.1 mi

36 min (25.4 mi)

2) 8161 Riverview Dr
Gloucester, VA 23061

14.

Head east on Riverview Dr
79 ft

6 s (79 ft)

3) 8169 Riverview Dr
Gloucester, VA 23061

These directions are for planning purposes only.
You may nd that construction projects, tra c,
weather, or other events may cause conditions to
differ from the map results, and you should plan
your route accordingly. You must obey all signs or
notices regarding your route.

Gloucester County
Environmental Programs
6489 Main Street, Building 2

Telephone 804-693-1217

6489 Main Street, Gloucester, Virginia 23061

Fax 804-824-2442

Gloucester County Wetlands Board
Agenda

July 8, 2020

I.

Call to Order

II.

Roll Call

III.

Approval of Minutes of June 10, 2020

IV.

Virginia Declaration of Policy Regarding Wetlands

V.

Public Hearings
1. VMRC 20-0779, Michael & Judith Hackett
Agent: Karla Havens, Mid-Atlantic Resource Consulting
2. VMRC 20-0780, Louise Hackett
Agent: Karla Havens, Mid-Atlantic Resource Consulting

I.
II.

Old Business
Any discussion concerning SB 776 that was included in your packet last month.
New Business

III.

Announcements

IV.

Adjournment – Recess for 5 minutes
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Gloucester County
Environmental Programs
Telephone 804-693-1217

P. O. Box 329, Gloucester, Virginia 23061

Gloucester County
Chesapeake Bay Preservation & Erosion Commission
July 8, 2020
Agenda

I.

Call to Order

II.

Roll Call

III.

Approval of Minutes of March 12th, 2020

IV.

Conditions for approving an exception

V.

Public Hearings
1. CBPEC 20-05, Sean M. Johnson
Agent: N/A

VI.

New Business

VII.

Old Business

VIII.

Announcements

IX.

Adjournment
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Fax 804-824-2442
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AT A MEETING OF THE GLOUCESTER COUNTY WETLANDS BOARD HELD ELECTRONICALLY
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 10TH, 2020 AT 7 P.M. BY ZOOM MEETING OVER THE INTERNET, DUE TO THE
CONTINUING COVID-19 PANDEMIC EMERGENCY, AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ORDINANCE
ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ON APRIL 7, 2020:
THERE WERE PRESENT:

John R. Sprouse, Chairman
Norman Sibley, Secretary
Walter Priest, Vice-Chairman
Rachel Strawn
Richard Klein

THERE WERE ABSENT:

Robert “Bronco” Bayless
William Minnick
William “Bill” Walker
William “Bill” Pickens

ALSO, IN ATTENDANCE:

Mike Johnson, Virginia Marine Resources Commission
Ron Owens, Environmental Programs – Gloucester County

IN RE: ROLL CALL
Mr. Sprouse called the June 10th, 2020 meeting to order. Roll call established a quorum
was present.
RE: APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MARCH 11TH, 2020
The minutes of March 11th, 2020 were approved as presented.
IN RE: VIRGINIA DECLARATION OF POLICY REGARDING WETLANDS
At the request of Chairman Sprouse, Mr. Sibley reads the Virginia Declaration of Policy
Regarding Wetlands:
“In fulfilling its responsibilities under this ordinance, the Board shall preserve and prevent the
despoliation and destruction of wetlands within its jurisdiction while accommodating
necessary economic development in a manner consistent with wetlands preservation.
In deciding whether to grant, grant in modified form or deny a permit the Board shall
consider the following:
The testimony of any person in support of or in opposition to the permit application;
The impact of the proposed development on the public health, safety and welfare; and
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The proposed development’s conformance with standards prescribed in the Code of
Virginia and guidelines hereunder.
The Board shall grant the permit if all the following criteria are met:
The anticipated public and private benefit of the proposed activity exceeds its anticipated
public and private detriment;
The proposed development conforms with, the standards prescribed in the Code of Virginia
and guidelines hereunder;
And the proposed activity does not violate the purposes and intent of this ordinance or
Chapter of the Code of Virginia.
If the Board finds that any of the criteria listed above are not met, the Board shall deny the
permit application but allow the applicant to resubmit the application in modified form.”
Mr. Sprouse: Thank you very much.
IN RE: ELECTRONIC MEETING LOGISTICS AND PARTICIPATION GUIDELINES
Mr. Owens: Gloucester County will continue to operate and conduct business in the face of the
COVID-19 pandemic. In order to maintain social distancing requirements and a responsible public
health posture, the County and various local agencies and commissions will be rescheduling and
relocating upcoming meetings to an online, virtual platform.
Where noted, meetings will be broadcast live on Cox Channel 48 and on the County’s
meeting portal at http://www.gloucesterva.info/640/Meeting-Portal. Although the meetings will
not be available for the physical presence of the public, several methods are being provided for
public input.
Comments may be submitted via an online form by visiting
www.gloucesterva.info/citizencomment until 4:30 p.m. on the day of the meeting selected.
Comments will be read aloud during that section of the meetings up to the set time limit (3
minutes). Comments submitted anonymously or with fictitious names will not be read.
Comments can also be submitted via phone until 4:30 p.m. on the day of the meeting.
Those wishing to comment should call 840-824-2760 and listen to the recorded menu.
Instructions will be provided on selections to make in order to leave a recorded comment.
Comments submitted via this method will be played during the appropriate comment or public
hearing period, up to the set time limit (3 minutes). This method will also be open for
comments to be submitted during public hearings, on the date and time such public hearings
are held by the Board (as advertised), until the Chair closes the public hearing for submissions.
Finally, to submit comments via US Mail, send to: County Administration ATTN:
Citizen/Public Hearing Comments, 6489 Main Street, Gloucester, VA 23061. Any mailed
comments must include your name, your magisterial district, and the meeting and item you are
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commenting on clearly printed at the top and be received by 4:30 p.m. on the day of the
meeting. All such comments must be received by the scheduled date of the meeting or public
hearing. Please type or print all comments legibly. Comments submitted via this method will be
read aloud during the appropriate comment or public hearing period, up to the set time limit (3
minutes).
It is also important to note that in keeping with the format for public meetings,
comments may be submitted once per person for each comment period/public hearing
selected. If more than one comment is submitted per selection, only the last comment
submission will be read.
“Form letter,” consisting of communications which are verbatim duplicates (other than
the identifying information of the author/submitter) of one or more other communications
received by the County pertaining to the matter to be considered at the public hearing or public
comment period, shall be read only once per letter, along with the list of person submitting the
same comments pursuant to such “form letter.”
Mr. Sprouse: Thank you very much, Ron.
Mr. Owens: Rusty, if I could just real briefly, real fast. So if, if you’re not participating in the
meeting, at this time we need you to have your video shut off as well as your video, your audio
muted, if you’re a contractor we’ll let you know when you’re available, when your public
comment period will be available and we’ll unmute you at that time.
So, we still have a couple of people, Karla, I’m not sure if you’re still with us.
Karla Havens: Yes
Mr. Owens: If you don’t mind, if you could mute your audio for me, and if you can’t, I can have
Laura do it. If you can’t really find a place on your phone to do it, I know you’re calling.
Karla: Did that work?
Mr. Owens: No, ma’am.
Karla: Can you hear me?
Mr. Owens: I can hear you, Yes. So, Laura if you could mute Karla at the 2107 number. I’d
appreciate it. Thank you, and Mr. Bowditch, we need to get you to, that is Mr. Bowditch up
there, right?
Mr. Bowditch: Yes, sir.
Mr. Owens: If we could get you to turn your video off as well as mute your audio, please?
Mr. Bowditch: How do I turn the video off?
Mr. Owens: So, there should, can you do that as well Laura? There you go we got you, we got
you all straight. Alright, Rusty. I’ll turn it back over to you.
IN RE: PUBLIC HEARING
VMRC 20-0363, Treavor A. Green, Karla Havens: Location: Yacht Club Lane, Waterbody:
Sarah’s Creek, Proposal: Bulkhead
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Mr. Sprouse: Thanks very much, Ron. The first hearing is VMRC 20 dash Oh three six three,
Trevor a green agent, Karla Havens, mid Atlantic resource consultant. Before we start, I'd like to
just remind those viewing on the public channel that they can call 804-824-2760 to provide
comments during the meeting. When you do call, we ask that you mute your TV before calling
and to speak clearly. Ron, would you go ahead and share your screen on this first application?
Mr. Owens: Yes, sir. Thank you. Yes. So, this is a vicinity map of the proposed project location
off of yacht club lane. The 2011 aerial. 2013, 2017. So, this project is seeking authorization to
construct the 105 foot of vinyl bulkhead with the associated backfill. There are 500 square feet
of wetland vegetation impacts. This is a plan view and a cross section and some site visits. This
picture here is, so I'll stop here, and we'll move forward with the rest of the presentation. And
at some point, I'll show them the next set of pictures. So, staff does have a recommendation
and this application would be to disapprove this application on the basis of the lack of erosion
in the amount of wetland vegetation that is to be removed and that's all I have with this
project. We do have the contractors online as well as the owner of the property is on here as
well. Thank you, Mr. Sprouse.
Mr. Sprouse: Oh, does anyone have any questions of staff?
Mr. Klein: I have a question.
Mr. Sprouse: Yes, sir.
Mr. Owens: Yes, sir. Yes.
Mr. Klein: Ron, would you please state again what your recommendation is?
Mr. Owens: So, my recommendation would to be, to disapprove the project based on the lack
of erosion, as well as the wetland vegetation impact.
Mr. Klein: Thank you.
Mr. Owens: Yes, sir.
Mr. Sprouse: Are there any other questions of staff then we'll move ahead. And, Karla, did you
want to speak to this project or the applicant?
Ms. Havens: Can you hear me? This is Karla. Can you hear me?
Mr. Sprouse: Yes.
Ms. Havens: May I speak?
Mr. Sprouse: Yes.
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Ms. Havens: As you said, Mr. Green is requesting 105 feet of vinyl bulkhead with backfill. No
more than two-foot channel word of the existing failing timber bulkhead. At low tide there's
roughly two to three feet of water in front of the bulkhead. And then it drops off from there to
about minus five. I'm not certain of the history of the Creek, but I believe it has been dredged at
least once in the recent past. Viewing an aerial photo, if you look upstream towards snug
Harbor, the Creek is kind of oddly linear in shape. And few, if any wetlands exist along either
shorelines suggesting it was hardened and dredged. In the sixties, the Gloucester Yacht Club
was located on what is now, Mr. Green's parcel and the parcel downstream of him currently
owned by Mr. Ron Miller. The existing bulkhead was present during the yacht club operations
and a swimming pool was located on what is now Mr. Green's property. Over the years, the
bulkhead has begun to fail. Backfill has settled on what most likely was wetlands and washed
away and on the landward side of the failing bulkhead of Spartina Alterna Flora Marsh has
established itself. It measures approximately five feet by 105 feet. This same bulkhead project
request came before your board a few years ago as VMRC 2016-1764. It was in the name of
David Bowditch he was the previous property owner. At that time, the board approved the
proposed bulkhead, two-foot channel word of the same existing failing timber bulkhead. And
you approved to the associated backfilling, including filling in these Spartina Alterna Flora
Marsh with the condition that Mr. Bowditch create 400 square feet of salt Marsh on his
property. The 400 square feet of salt Marsh mitigation was created from Upland approximately
two years ago on Mr. Bowditch, his home property, which is located at the end of yacht club
lane. Mr. Walter Priest and Ron Owens were involved in the design and creation of the 400
square foot wetland mitigation area. A site visit on June 1st, 2020 with Treavor Green, David
Bowditch, Ron Owens and myself confirmed that the salt marsh is alive and well. I can forward
photos if you'd like, I don't know if Ron showed those to you or if he's got them for tonight's
presentation to show you, since I brought it up now. And perhaps you've already seen the
mitigation area during your site visit to the Green property. I hope everyone was able to go and
look hopefully at low tide. And perhaps you remember the mitigation site and the project site
from the last time we reviewed it and in 2016, when the bulkhead application went before you.
Since 2016 permit approval, the property and wetland permit exchanged ownership, and
Treavor Green is now the property owner. The 2016 permit was also extended once.
Meanwhile, Mr. Green made multiple attempts to have the original contractor construct the
approved bulkhead, but that did not come to fruition. Mr. Green reached out to other
contractors, but none of them were able available prior to the permit expiration date. If the
bulkhead is constructed as proposed, please note that the original 400 square foot of vegetated
wetland impacts has increased to 505 square feet. As the area continues to erode, settle and
the Spartina Alterna Flora spreads. Since the previous 400 square feet offsite wetland
mitigation has proven successful, Mr. Green is willing to pay an in-lieu fee for the remaining 105
square feet. Prior to requesting this permit for the 105-foot bulkhead and backfill, other
alternatives were considered. In order to preserve the existing salt marsh, we considered
constructing the proposed bulkhead landward of the existing salt bush line completely out of
the Wetland Board's jurisdiction.
Ms. Havens: This would be more of a retaining wall as opposed to a bulkhead. Moving the wall
landward of the salt Bush would preserve the upland but would do nothing to stop the erosion
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of the salt marsh and the degradation of the existing failing bulkhead. Hopefully during your
site visit, you notice that both ends of the existing bulkhead have failed and the marsh is
eroding into the creek. In particular, on the left-hand side, where there's a big void at low tide.
Additionally, along the mid portion of the bulkhead, some of the timber sheets are broken at
the mud line. These gaps have scour occurring behind and through them. So, installing a wall
landward of the salt marsh or salt bush will not prevent or minimize siltation into the creek and
or future erosion and loss of the salt marsh. Additionally, we discussed constructing a living
shoreline. Due to the water depth channel wear to the existing bulkhead, it is not suitable to
install a marsh toe as it would have a huge base width in order to reach the creek bottom and
then come up to a high enough elevation to support the marsh. The same can be said for the
construction of a revetment. We clearly understand the concept and value of the living
shoreline. The problem installing a living shoreline here is that we are not dealing with a natural
shoreline. There was a break in the contiguity of the creek bottom and the wetlands due to the
existing bulkhead. As much as Mr. Green would like to avoid wetland impacts while stabilizing
his shoreline, it is not feasible or reasonable to do so. Additionally, 400 of the 505 square feet
of wetlands have already been mitigated for. Rarely is it the case where mitigated wetlands are
created and deemed successful prior to the construction of a permitted structure. This is an
ideal situation and that the mitigation marsh is already established. Mr. Green is following the
mitigation guidelines of avoid, minimize, mitigate. He is willing to pay an in-lieu fee for the
remaining 105 square feet wetland impacts. Ron Owens and Mike Johnson with VMRC, both
mentioned the upcoming living shoreline living shoreline legislation that goes into effect July
1st, 2020, and said that if feasible, a living shoreline must be done. Feasible is defined by
Webster as suitable. For the reasons mentioned earlier, we feel a living shoreline is not feasible,
nor is it suitable for this 105-foot reach of Sarah Creek. Additionally, with all due respect today
is June 10th, 2020. Mr. Ryan Miller, the adjacent property owner to the left recently completed
a similar project. I'm not certain if there were a mitigation requirement associated with that
bulkhead and backfill project, but Mr. Green would like to conduct similar activities on his
adjacent property. The left-hand side of Mr. Green's bulkhead would tie into the right-hand side
of Mr. Miller's bulkhead. There is one other option that is, that is to do nothing to Mr. Greens'
shoreline. Note, that there are more than 20 waterfront lots upstream of his site. As boats
move up and down the Creek, and as sea level continues to rise, the bulkhead will continue to
fall apart, resulting in more erosion of the marsh and more siltation into the creek. We
understand this is not an ideal situation, but at least 505 square feet of salt marsh will be
mitigated for it, with the request before you. For these reasons, we ask that the board approve
of this project. Thank you.
Mr. Sprouse: Does the board have any questions for Karla?
Mr. Sprouse: I'm now going to ask for comments from the public.
Mr. Sprouse: Go ahead
Mr. Owens: Mr. Green is also present online as the owner and I believe he has something that
he'd like to add as well.
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Mr. Sprouse: Okay. I apologize, Mr. Green,
Mr. Owens: Mr. Green, if we could get you to unmute your audio and video as well. You can
make yourself visible if you'd like. Okay. Sorry. You can proceed.
Mr. Green: Can you hear me, Ron?
Mr. Owens: Yes, sir.
Mr. Green: Okay. I just wanted to thank you guys for hearing this case tonight. And I wanted to
just add a couple of things. They only, the only thing I'd like to do is just replace the existing
failing bulkhead that is in, that is currently there. And just fix what's there to keep the shoreline
from, to come from continually eroding into the creek. So that's all I'm asking for the board to
grant is the same permit that we already had that expired. And that's the only thing I'm asking
is basically just to extend the date of the current permit that that did expire. So that's, that's all
I have to add.
Mr. Sprouse: Anyone have any questions for Mr. Green?
Mr. Sprouse: I have one question. When I looked at it, it was not just replacing the bulkhead.
The issue is backfilling behind the bulkhead. Is that, not, that is part of the project I believe.
Mr. Green: Yes, that is correct.
Mr. Sprouse: Now I'll go to see if anyone in the public has any comments. Was there anyone
that submitted any written comments?
Mr. Sprouse: I could not hear you, Ron.
Mr. Owens: We did have one. That was from Mr. Bowditch and Laura, can you hear me? There
you go.
Ms. Walton: Yeah, I can hear you.
Mr. Owens: Alright.
Ms. Walton: Alright.
Mr. Owens: Laura will read those comments aloud for you now. Thank you.
Ms. Walton: This email is in support of Treavor Green's bulkhead application. There are
presently bulkheads and rip rap on both side of lot 11, as well as across the Creek. The existing
bulkhead needs to be replaced. The existing wetlands meditation is a small area, right at square
feet created due to the failure of the existing bulkhead originally built by the Gloucester Yacht
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Club in the 1960s in anticipation of this new bulkhead on lot 11, the Gloucester wetlands board
previously approved 400 feet of wetlands mitigation that was created on my property design on
in collaboration with Walter priests and Warner. Please note that to do nothing. The bulkhead
will fall into the Creek. Along with the backfill, the board approved the application in the past,
nothing has changed. Please give Mr. Treavor Green a permit to replace the existing bulkhead
on lot 11. Dave Bowditch
Mr. Sprouse: Thank you very much, Laura. So, I'll remind the public if they'd like have any
comments they can call on to (804) 824-2760. I understand the protocol is that we'll recess for
five minutes to give an opportunity for the public to call in. Then we will come back
Mr. Sprouse: Period and the hearing.
Mr. Sprouse: Well did, Laura, did you receive any comments during the period?
Ms. Walton: No, I did not get any phone calls in.
Mr. Sprouse: Okay. Then we'll go ahead and discuss the application among the board.
Mr. Klein: Okay. This is Rick. Ron, if I can ask you a question concerning the bulkhead that I
believe is to the left. That seems relatively new.
Mr. Owens: Yes, sir.
Mr. Klein: Can you tell me when that was approved and when it was built?
Mr. Owens: So, I don't have the that application in front of me, but I can tell you it's been within
the last three years. I don't know exactly when, but it's been within the last three years. I don't
have the exact date.
Mr. Klein: Okay. Well, I, I'm still trying to understand what the delay has been. I if that person, if
that property could have a bulkhead built in the last three years what was the issue on this
one?
Mr. Owens: So then check the application, or excuse me, the previous application, the previous
application was granted, and that was an extension for that application. So that permit expired.
So, my understanding is that it turned into new ownership and the information I received from
the applicant is that the contractor could not get there to get the structure built. That's my
knowledge, but the application was extended once as the new board normally does.
Mr. Johnson: Hey, Ron this is Mike Johnson. Is it okay if I, if I address that one question about
the JPAS at Mr. Miller?
Mr. Owens:
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Yes. That's. Yes, sir.
Mr. Johnson: I'm looking at that application right now. It was 2014.
Mr. Owens: So, it's been six years Mr. Klein. Thanks, Mike. It's been six years. I'm sorry. Time
flies, but, so it was 2016, Mr. Klein.
Mr. Klein: Thank You.
Mr. Owens: Yes, sir.
Mr. Sibley: Mike, is that, is that adjoining property, is that built according to the JPA?
Mr. Johnson: I have not done a compliance inspection on that, on that particular JPA, sir.
Mr. Sibley: Ok.
Mr. Johnson: Let me see if I can see that in our tracking database. Hold on one second.
Mr. Owens: So, rest of the board members, just remember that your mics are muted. If you're,
if you're looking to say something that your mics are muted tell if you want to say anything,
make sure you unmute.
Ms. Strawn: I don't think my mic is muted. So, I'll go ahead and jump in just to get the
discussion going. I know in general, we're not in favor of bulkheads, it's not a preferred method.
However, when the adjoining property owners have bulkheads, we previously approved a
bulkhead on this property and a small portion of the area that is not bulk headed. I think that,
and, and the reasons that Ms. Havens gave as well about the it not being a good situation for
living shoreline. I think that this may be an occasion where we would, I would be in favor of
replacing the existing failing bulkhead and approving the application with the mitigation
indicated the hundred and I think it was five feet mitigation.
Mr. Klein: I, this was Rick. I don't know where I am on this thing, so I don't know whether I'm
talking or not. So
Ms. Strawn: We can see you and hear you.
Mr. Klein: Okay, good. I, it's probably good that I don't have to watch myself. I hear, I hear what
you say, Rachel. One of my concerns is all that you have brought up. And I would, I mean, it
seems like this is what's happened in the past. This is what the board has done. So, I, I think
that we have to follow that to some extent, but my feeling is, is that my question? Maybe it's
more of a question. Can we give an extension and not just approve it again? Because I would
like to see this, if in fact, they're going to go ahead with this. I'd like to see it gone ahead with,
rather than us having to continue to make these unpleasant calls.
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Mr. Sibley: We have a situation. Well, this permit that you're talking about was issued back in
2014. The mitigation was done it back in 2016 or 18, that has absolutely no relevance to this
permit. I'm sorry. That was done. It was done prior to this permit; it was done by an old permit.
It has no application to this permit. We have no erosion that I could see. I've been out there and
looked. The adjoining property will be up to VMRC to review. I don't remember the joint
permit, permit and all that, but anyhow it maybe. It'll be up to VMRC. We have no, we have no
real erosion here. We have an old bulkhead that was put in back in the sixties. Yeah, it's gone.
But we have a living. We have a living shoreline. We have a shoreline that has no erosion.
Therefore, what we are allowing would be to destroy a shoreline that is already there to put in
a bulkhead that's not necessary. He can, he can put in a pier, he can put in his cap off, he can do
whatever. That's out of our jurisdiction. I can't support this application. I don't see any reason
for it. And I don't think the mitigation from four years ago, five years ago applies to this
application. I may be wrong. That's my feeling.
Mr. Owens: So, so just to answer your question Mr. Klein about the extension of this, of the old
permit to make it an active permit now. So that application is, is expired. And we, only the
board, I say the board only issues one extension on all applications. So, it takes it from an 18
month to a 36-month application. So that has been extended and, in the future, our
applications now are good for 36 months, not 18 months. So, there are no extensions granted
on any of our applications. Now, they all have to be re -reviewed by the board.
Mr. Sprouse: So, Ron, you're saying the application expired three years ago.
Mr. Owens: No, the application expired. And I believe it was 2019. So at least
Mr. Sprouse: 2019?
Mr. Owens: Yes, sir.
Mr. Sprouse: Okay. I thought you had mentioned 2014, so
Ms. Strawn: I think that was the adjacent property.
Mr. Sprouse: Okay. Thank you.
Mr. Klein: If in fact this is a separate application, has nothing to do with previous applications.
Then I think the board is obliged to ensure that we follow best practices, now, not necessarily
six or eight years ago, granted the, the new living shoreline hasn't gone into effect yet, but in
fact, that has been the way the board has been trying to work towards to help reduce erosion. I
agree looking at the property Norman, I have not seen a lot of erosion out there either. I mean,
I have a difficult time. I really do have a difficult time accepting doing things the old way. Albeit
that's the way they were done six or eight years ago.
Mr. Sprouse: Does anyone else have any comments or questions? Do I hear a motion?
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Ms. Havens: This is Karla Havens. May I, may I address the erosion issue?
Mr. Sprouse: Yes.
Ms. Havens: Thank you. I'm not certain what time of the tide cycle you all were out on your
visit, but the left-hand side, where Mr. Miller, Mr. Miller's property butts up there's about an
eight to 10-foot-wide gap of missing bulkhead there. And perhaps you were at the site at high
tide and it was covered by water, but there is no marsh there because it's all eroded away.
There's no bulkhead there anymore and to suggest that there's no erosion or a lack of erosion
on that site is simply wrong. I just, I just, I want to bring that point out. And additionally, if this,
if we wind up appealing to VMRC, I would like to get on the record who went to the site and did
you see active erosion?
Mr. Sibley: I went through the site and I didn't see active erosion and I didn't see enough
erosion to justify the bulkhead that you requested.
Ms. Havens: What would you suggest we do?
Mr. Owens: Mr. Sprouse? If I could. So just, just to do things in orderly fashion, the public
hearing is closed, and is now in the boards.
Mr. Sprouse: Correct, I'm sorry.
Mr. Owens: To taking comment at this time or, or questions for Ms. Haven may not be the
practical thing to do unless you reopened public hearing, which I'm not sure you're inclined to
do.
Ms. Havens: All right. Well, Ron, can I ask since I can't see the T.V., I can't see the T.V. screen.
Did you show a ground shot of the bulkhead where it would tie into Mr. Miller's property?
Mr. Owens: I did show that, yes. Ma'am the pictures that you and I took on site.
Ms. Havens: Maybe you could go back to that.
Mr. Owens: I just want to bring up that Mr. Priest, I'm not sure if you're still on the line. I
noticed your, your red symbol from mute has not changed, so I'm not quite sure if you're still
online. Yes, you are.
Mr. Priest: Yes.
Mr. Owens: You are.
Mr. Priest: Yes, I'm still here.
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Mr. Owens: Yes, I just wanted to make sure.
Mr. Priest: Yes, yes.
Mr. Owens: Thank you.
Mr. Priest: Hello?
Mr. Owens: Yes sir, we can hear you.
Mr. Priest: Okay. This is Walter. Okay. Alright. I was going to have to, okay. We've approached
this once before with the mitigation, there was no mitigation evidence against that, which
we've created in the previous permit and I think that, that that mitigation is still since it has not
been debited by anything else, it's still a newly created marsh. And I, and I, I feel it's acceptable
to use it on this permit application. The situation, this is not a natural situation. The bulkhead is
failing to do nothing means that that, by and by that bulkhead is going to fall over and
everything is going to go and it's kind of, it doesn't make any sense to me. The next-door
neighbor, Mr. Miller's lot looked exactly well, for all intents and purposes looked exactly like
Mr. Greens. And because it's, it's a, I want to say it's such a crazy situation with the bulkhead,
the water depths offshore. We looked, when we looked at this, this application, the last time
we looked at all the available alternatives and the bulkhead replacement, we found to be the
least damaging. There is erosion there. If there isn't today, there's going to be tomorrow. And I,
I feel very much that we have some, a modicum of, I can't think in front of this phone
responsibility to that's not right, but we approved the one next door and I'm the last person in
the world that I ever want to be called consistent. And it's that, that property was essentially
the same as this one. It's a, it's a hybrid bastard, pardon my French, it's a bastard situation. And
there is no easy fix in order to get it done and get it done the way it needs to be done so that
there aren't any further any further erosion or any additional damage to the Creek.
Mr. Priest: In my opinion, the bulkhead replacement is you know, it is, it's at least damaging
alternative. The marsh is going to go away. If you put rip rap in there, you're going to, it's the
marsh, it's just, it's an artifact of the situation. It's not a natural system. And I would support
approving the permit that the application as submitted and using the mitigation that was
performed for the previous application. And, and the fact being that there's no other losses
coveted against that mitigation. So, it remains you know, free and clear credit, as far as I'm
concerned. That's all I have to say,
Mr. Sprouse: Johnson, you, can you add any comments to the discussion we've had?
Mr. Johnson: I can't add anything that can influence the board's decision. All I can say is you
have to discuss, you know, whether or not living shoreline is, is suitable for this project, or, you
know, is the preferred alternative. And then if you decide, it's not, you have to start weighing
avoidance of impacts to fit, to vegetate a wetlands. Then you have to just discuss whether or
not you're going to, how you're going to minimize as much as possible. Those impacts, those
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vegetated wetlands. And then if you, once you've gotten to that point, any vegetated wetlands
that are being lost have to be mitigated for, and that's about all I can really add.
Mr. Sprouse: Okay
Mr. Priest: This is Walter, again. This is not a good place for a living shoreline. The water's too
deep, the channels too narrow. In order to build one, it would be, it's just not the place. When
you look at any other guidelines for living shorelines. If the water 20 feet from the, 20 feet from
the shoreline is greater than two feet, it's not living shorelines aren't recommended. And this,
in this case, it's way deeper than that. There's no real way to avoid, avoid the impacts. If you, if
you pulled out the existing structure, everything's going to fall. The marsh is perched three feet
above the water. It's going to erode away and fall into the Creek. There's no way to avoid it.
And we're minimizing it back, by minimizing the amount of encroachment into the waterway.
And for those unavoidable impacts, we have a combination of existing mitigation site and in leu
fee payments to make up the balance that's required.
Mr. Klein: This is, this is Rick. Walter help me try to rationalize this my, what I'm starting to
hear, and from what I've seen in Ron's pictures is this portion of that waterway is pretty much a
canal more than a more than just a shore.
Mr. Priest: Yes.
Mr. Klein: So, in fact with the, with the amount of boat traffic that you're going to have on
there, you, I can understand that you're going to have additional erosion. So, in fact do we have
a canal with sides on it and not a shoreline?
Mr. Priest: Well, look I don't, the portion upstream of this place was definitely dredged out in a
marsh or upland and that was done back in the sixties before the wetlands act. Well, the
natural Creek stopped and where the dredging, I don't, I don't know, but one of the, one of the
problems with this site is that I would be willing to bet you, I don't know for a fact, but 40 years
of experience, I'll bet you dollars to donuts that the material behind that bulkhead is dredged
material that has consolidated and is it's not suitable to do anything. And it's, I don't know. I
don't like it any more than anybody else, but this is best. The bulkhead replacement is the least
damaging most practical option for this particular project.
Mr. Klein: Well, and my feeling is I I'm still having difficulty understanding, and I don't know
enough about mitigation and all of that to say that you can just pick it up and move it over to
someone, some other application. I'm not, I don't know anything about that, but I believe there
needs to be some mitigation for this project. Not necessarily, Oh, this is good. Here's a, here's,
here's some pennies in the jar that nobody's taken, so I'm going to use them.
Mr. Priest: Well, I don't know. I don't, I don't buy that. Rick. That marsh was created for the, for
this project and it exact identical project as this. There have been that it was, it was like, it's just
like a mitigation bank. They created it and they never, there's never been any debits against it.
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So therefore, it's still, it's on the positive side of the ledger and I have, I just don't see any
reason. It's, it's something that wasn't there before this, before this project, the previous
project was done. It, it wasn't there, it was Upland. Now it's marsh inland.
Mr. Klein: Walter. I understand what you're saying, but I want just one other question when it
comes to mitigation. What gives this application, the right to use that mitigation?
Mr. Priest: Because just because there have been no other projects have been credited or
debited and that project it's, it's just the same.
Mr. Sprouse: I would contend that if the mitigation wasn't sold with the lot, then the new lot
has nothing to do with the mitigation.
Mr. Sibley: I agree
Mr. Priest: I'm sorry, I don't buy that.
Mr. Sprouse: I don't understand how you can buy a lot and the paperwork says nothing about
the mitigation. I don't see how the connection. If it wasn't so long ago, it might be different, but
Mr. Priest: It was, Hey, Rusty, it was a year ago. It was in 2019 when the project was,
Mr. Sprouse: 2018
Mr. Priest: Oh, well, whenever it was just, it was, it wasn't that long ago. And I'm,
Ms. Strawn: The project was approved in 2016.
Mr. Sibley: When was the mitigation done?
Mr. Owens: So, the project was in 2016. So, you can mitigate, probably done. And it was done a
while after 2016 approval. So maybe around 2017 or so just maybe a year later, a year later,
Mr. Priest: That's probably, that's pretty correct. I think.
Mr. Sibley: And that was done under our previous owner, am I correct?
Mr. Owens: Yes, sir. Done under a previous owner. Yes, sir.
Mr. Priest: The marsh, Norman, the marsh doesn't know who owns it. Okay.
Mr. Sibley: No, but Walter if you go in and create a marsh, that doesn't pass on to the next
owner. I'm sorry. I don't buy that.
Mr. Priest: Well, we're going to have to agree to disagree, Norman.
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Mr. Sibley: Well, I agree with you.
Mr. Sprouse: So, one of the options discussed was to put the, basically put a uh behind the
marsh a retaining wall.
Mr. Priest: And what's going to happen is when that when the existing failing bulkhead finally
fails, everything channel work of that retaining wall will be gone. The marsh will erode away
and putting that it's not a viable option, it'll come behind the marsh because it will be there for
a little while, but by and by its, you know, it's perched up in the air, it's sitting up three feet
above the "inaudible" , and
Mr. Sprouse: I'm just going back to staff's recommendation and they recommended this
approval. So, I'm trying to,
Mr. Priest: I know, well that's yeah. And I understand that, but we're, the Board is charged with
making the decision and we can jump in. Sometimes you follow with sometimes you follow the
staff and sometimes we don't.
Mr. Sprouse: I understand that. I'm just trying to, to align the rationale, to understand,
understand so that you know, as, as it goes forward, we don't end up in a hole. That's what I'm
trying to do.
Mr. Priest: Well, I wouldn't, I think we need to make the best decision whatever the, you know,
the best decision that we can make and then whatever happens, happens and not be worried
too much about what may or may have may or may happen in the future.
Mr. Sprouse: I'm looking at just following, following the guidelines, that's what I'm looking to
do.
Mr. Klein: Right? And that, that, that I think Rusty hits the nail on the head is we're all sitting
here and saying you know, what, what we really got here is an untenable situation that can't be
fixed under what we normally think can be fixed that should fix it. This is not, I I'm using the
term, I'm using the term. This is a canal, it's not a shoreline. And the best thing that I would like
to say is, is that if we can, if we can get some mitigation out of this other than what has
previously been done, which has nothing to do with this application, as I understand it, other
than historically can, I would like to see mitigation done with this application. And then there's
an opportunity that I, that I'd be willing to say, okay, it's a canal, but we got some mitigation
someplace else. And according to, according to Walter this is all pennies in the jar and anybody
that wants to can go in and use it.
Mr. Sprouse: Well, are we through with our discussion so that there's a motion on the floor, or
we need to have further discussion.
Ms. Strawn:
2486

I have a question for Ron about mitigation. So, I think it's 500 square feet of wetlands here.
What would the I forget the, is it Heartland? What is the, where could it be.
Mr. Priest: "Inaudible"Quake Creek
Ms. Strawn: "Inaudible" quake Creek?
Mr. Priest: Yes
Ms. Strawn: What would that be
Mr. Owens: That that bank is not this particular water body. So, there is the reason that Mr.
Bowditch was allowed to create the wetlands on his project, on his property was instead of
having to buy credits, they would offer up these, this location. There is no bank in this particular
area that we use. So, they would have to actually pay to the Gloucester County in leu fund for
wetlands. So, there is the bank would not be able to be used in this particular study.
Ms. Strawn: And what would that payment be?
Mr. Owens: $12 a square foot.
Mr. Priest: 12.50.
Mr. Owens: It may have gone up, but the last time I checked, and if you do the whole 500 and
some square feet
Ms. Strawn: Six-Thousand two hundred and fifty.
Mr. Owens: Yes, ma'am
Mr. Sprouse: Ron, do you have any information on ownership of that mitigation?
Mr. Owens: I'm not a lawyer, so I can't tell you the ownership of it. All I can tell you is that
Mr. Priest: It doesn't, mitigation doesn't, it doesn't make any different choose property, as on,
as long as it's done. You can't, there's no way to do it, if you want to use the guidelines, typically
mitigation, the best kind of mitigation is in "inaudible" and onsite.
Mr. Sprouse: Understand
Mr. Priest: The next preferable way used to be anyway, that's prevalent in "inaudible" Off-sites
and that's what you're talking about. The second alternative in the mitigation process and in
the absence of a bank in-kind offsite is the preferred mitigation option in the absence of a bank.

2487

Mr. Sprouse: Understand.
Mr. Klein: So, what you're saying is we do not have, if this applicant can find a place that
mitigation will work, not necessarily on his property.
Mr. Priest: Rick, just in following the VMRC guidelines, and I'm going to be a little bit facetious
here. That five hundred square feet could be constructed, could be constructed anywhere in
the York river watershed and be acceptable mitigation, anywhere in the York river watershed.
In fact, I mean, you could build it up at West point and it would be acceptable. It would follow
the mitigation guidelines.
Mr. Klein: Okay. And, and, and I appreciate that. So, what you're saying is mitigation is possible
somewhere within the York river watershed for this piece of property, is that correct?
Mr. Priest: That is correct. That anywhere it can be the, the marsh, remarsh that can be
constructed to offset the loss of this marsh anywhere in the York river watershed.
Mr. Klein: Okay. And for that to happen, this applicant would then have to would have to pay
for that mitigation, correct. At $12.50.
Mr. Priest: A square foot. No, that's no, no. The 12.50 a square foot is an in-lieu fee because
there isn't, because we don't have a bank and it's in lieu of having a place to attach the, create
the marsh, there's no sites available and there's no bank available. Then the third option is an in
lieu fee payment where you pay into a fund and that fund as far in the instance of Gloucester
County, that fund accrues until the point where there's enough money that we can actually go
out and find a place and create some marsh to offset those offset the losses that have accrued
in that in lieu fee fund.
Mr. Klein: Okay. Well then let me see if I can, I'm trying to put together a motion here, and that
is to approve the application; require, which will also require mitigation of 500 square feet into
this bank, or somewhere in the watershed. So that, and I'm, you know, yeah. I'm just an
alternate, but at the same time, I'm part of this wetlands board. And, and, and I don't like
building things that we don't want built, but if we can at least say, what we're trying to do here
is to work around that so that we can keep erosion down, even though all we're doing is
perpetuating a canal. But we're also perpetuating hopefully watershed with some reserve. How
do I, how do I do that?
Mr. Priest: Well, how do you make the motion?
Mr. Klein: Well, I mean, is what I just said, application plus mitigation fee to cover 600 or 500
square feet?
Mr. Priest: Yes. That's that would certainly be, that would certainly be available. You know, that
would be some notion that would be a consideration.
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Mr. Klein: Okay. Well, I'll make that motion.
Mr. Owens: Can you restate that please? Rick, just so we have it, correct?
Mr. Klein: Sure. I'm just saying application approved as.
Mr. Priest: Submitted.
Mr. Klein: Submitted, thank you, with additional mitigation of 500 square feet at whatever the
going rate is for the square foot mitigation to be put in or if, if like Rachel, like you say, I got six,
I got $6,250 at $12.50. Correct? So, I don't want to put a specific number on it because I don't
know that, I don't know that that 12.50 or we don't know that that 12.50 is the right number.
Mr. Priest: It really isn't w but it's all we got to work with right now.
Mr. Owens: So, Mr. Klein, just, just to understand your motion is that to be paid into the in-leu
fee to Gloucester County
Mr. Priest: That's
Mr. Klein: Yeah, to Gloucester County.
Mr. Priest: Well, wait a minute, wait a minute.
Mr. Klein: No, I don't want, I want it to go to the mitigation fund "fund", whatever that is. If it's
Gloucester County that's even better. I don't know, does Gloucester County have a mitigation
fund.
Mr. Priest: Yes. But [inaudible], there's a protocol you got to go through. The preferred method
of mitigation is creating in-kind and onsite. If you can't do that, then it goes to in-kind offsite.
And this is all in leu in the absence of a bank. So, the preferred option would be in this case,
there isn't a place to do it onsite and be in-kind, the same kind of marsh off site. That would be
the preferred. If that can't be done, then you go into the in-leu fee. You can't go to the in-leu
fee until you've gotten over the hurdle of whether there's an available site adjacent or
somewhere close by. So, really anywhere in the York, anywhere in the watershed.
Mr. Klein: Well, I guess, and I don't, I'm not concerned about the actual location. Yes. It would
be wonderful. They can't do it on the, on the property where the applications for.
Mr. Priest: Yeah.
Mr. Klein: Okay.
Mr. Priest: Yeah.
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Mr. Klein: So, then we go to plan B on mitigation, and I personally don't have an issue of where
it is as long as this applicant pays for that mitigation.
Mr. Sprouse: So, you're saying basically in kind offsite, or if not available payment to the
Gloucester in lieu of County.
Mr. Priest: Yeah. That's, that's what that's, see that's the way it needs to be. If you're going to
survive any challenges, to it, you have to, it has to go through the process. It's not a very long
site. The next thing is in kind off site and actually create them. And this is in the absence of a
bank. The last, the least preferable option is the in-leu fee fund, because what happens is the
money accrues in the fund and the marsh may not get built for years.
Mr. Klein: Okay. Then let's put it in there that regardless. Well, we don't want to go that last
option. Just how do we write this? How do we put this in a motion? I'm sorry. I'm not legal.
Mr. Sprouse: Well, I don't know that we can determine it. It needs to be in kind offsite or if not
available payment to the Gloucester County in leu fee fund and the process will decide where,
how it's handled.
Mr. Priest: That's perfect. Rusty.
Mr. Klein: That sounds good to me.
Mr. Sprouse: Yes, sir. Ron.
Mr. Owens: So, I think in your motion, you need to include, if this is a motion that's going to be
entertained by the board is that you have a, an inclusion of a mitigation plan. Just not that
there's 500 square feet of mitigation. We need to have a plan for the mitigation. So that,
Mr. Priest: Absolutely. Absolutely.
Mr. Owens: I got that included in your motion.
Mr. Priest: Yeah.
Mr. Klein: Right.
Mr. Sprouse: You can add that at the end.
Mr. Klein: The bottom line, the bottom line for me on this is none of us, I think, including you,
Ron liked this application. All right. Because it's not what we want to do, but there it's, it's, it's
the best of a really bad situation. And we have to, I think that we have to set a precedent that
we can't just, we can't just approve something like this without some kind of clear
understanding by the public that if you do this, it's going to cost you more money because
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we're going to have to mitigate it. That's the concept, the wording I got to leave to you. Legal
Eagles.
Mr. Sprouse: Ron, do you have, you have the wording adequately captured?
Mr. Owens: So, what I have is application approved as submitted with the addition of 500
square feet of mitigation, whether it be on site, off site or in leu, whatever best fits the criteria,
along with a mitigation plan. Does that sound like what was said?
Mr. Priest: Telling me the mitigation plan in case, in the sense that you're going to create the
new marsh, to form the mitigation. You don't mean a mitigation plan if it goes to the in-leu fee
fund.
Mr. Owens: But we have to include that language, we have to include that language [inaudible]
just in case.
Mr. Sprouse: So, you could just move that mitigation plan above in front of, or if not available
payment to the in leu.
Mr. Priest: Yeah.
Mr. Klein: Okay. May I just add one thing, simply by talking about mitigation plan in this, in this
motion, does that then put the liability on the applicant? Does a mitigation plan automatically
put it on the, a liability on?
Mr. Priest: Absolutely. The mitigation needs to be done before the, before the project is
constructed.
Mr. Klein: Okay. That's even better. And the mitigation plan to be completed, not to not
completed the mitigation plan to be finalized and funded prior to the start of the construction.
Mr. Priest: Yes. That's the way it needs to be.
Mr. Sprouse: How are you doing Ron?
Mr. Owens: I think it would be best if one of the board members repeated it back, but I can
repeat back what I have written down.
Mr. Sprouse: Okay. if you could repeat it once and then Rick will say it again.
Mr. Owens: So, application approved as submitted with 500 additional square feet of mitigation
to be completed offsite within a mitigation plan prior to construction or payment into the in-leu
Gloucester County in leu fee bank prior to construction of the project. Did I capture it all that
time, Walter?
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Mr. Priest: Yeah. That sounds pretty good
Mr. Klein: I can, I can live with that.
Mr. Sprouse: I'm trying to repeat
Mr. Klein: I just want, I just want make sure that, that the applicant understands that he's got to
pay, he's got to pay into the mitigation plan prior to the actual construction of the of this part of
the canal.
Mr. Sprouse: And I think that's a typical practice. Is it not Walter?
Mr. Priest: Yes, it is. [inaudible] Supposed to be done, the compensation supposed to occur
before the loss occurs so that there's no net loss.
Mr. Sprouse: So, I've got a motion. Do I have a second?
Mr. Priest: I second it.
Mr. Johnson: Can I, can I get some clarification on something? This is Mike Johnson. Who's
going to approve this plan, mitigation plan?
Mr. Priest: I will.
Mr. Johnson: Thank you. I just wanted that for the record.
Mr. Priest: Okay. I will ensure that, I will ensure that the plan is done, is discernible and I'll help.
I'll help supervise the construction. If that makes it makes people feel any better.
Mr. Owens: So, I hate to stop your motion, but the only thing that I would add, so we're, if we
do end up constructing this, if, if Mr. Green gets it constructed, we will need a surety in place to
ensure that the plants actually survive and not just die off and we're left with nothing and the
project's complete. So, we, you do need,
Mr. Klein: Absolutely. Absolutely. Ron, that's a great add. We need it, we need a sizable surety.
Mr. Sprouse: Yeah. What's the, what's the typical, I thought it was a thousand-dollar surety.
Mr. Owens: So, generally not in this particular case, because they're generally from an E&S
standpoint we would do substantially more than that and, and land disturbance. So, since we're
talking about a potential, you know, maybe, Walter, may be able to give a better estimate, but
we can maybe require half of the amount of construction. Does that sound reasonable, Walter?
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Mr. Priest: I'm not sure that, you know what, it all depends upon the site, how much it's going
to cost typically what you it's tricky. If I'm doing it. If I'm overseeing it, something, something
might happen to the plants, but the grading is the important thing is to get the grades right. If
the grades right, the plants will grow and there's no problems. It's just a matter of getting the
elevations correct. And, the fact, the, the typical thousand-dollar surety at 500 square feet,
that's $2, $2 a square foot and that will more than cover the cost of replanting. It's 500 square
feet would be 125 plants to cover 500 square feet. That would be actually, you got a thousand
dollars would be you got $8 for each plant. So, I think a thousand dollars is fine if I'm going to
be doing it. I'm very comfortable.
Mr. Klein: I hate to be devious here, but you know what, a thousand-dollar surety sounds a heck
of a lot better than $6,200 for a mitigation plan at $12.50 per square foot. So, I 'lose the
thousand in a heartbeat so I don't have to pay the $6,250. I think it has to be a sizeable amount
more than that.
Mr. Priest: Well, if you want
Mr. Klein: I mean, I I'd say
Mr. Priest: Give me a figure, because there's really no way. There's no magic formula to plug it
in because you can go, yeah. There's 500 square feet. It might cost 5,000 at $10 a square foot.
My cost $5,000. It might cost $3 a square foot and there's no way of knowing. See, all depends
upon where the, what the site is and what you have to do at the site.
Mr. Klein: Oh, so who, who knows?
Mr. Priest: Well, you can't, until you have a plan, once you have a site and a plan, you can figure
out how much it's going to cost to do it.
Mr. Klein: Okay. Then, then let's, let's, let's say that a surety needs to be 80% of what the
mitigation plan is.
Mr. Priest: Well, okay as long as we work that out.
Mr. Owens: Well, did you want to include that in your motion Mr. Klein?
Mr. Klein: Yes. I'd like, I'd like it if there is an insurer, which will include a surety of 80% of the
mitigation plans total costs.
Mr. Priest: That's agreeable to the second.
Mr. Sprouse: I, I don't understand how you're going to do the mitigation plan is if you build it
off site, or if you find another location, the reality is that they're going to probably, they can't
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build it onsite. They can't probably find another location. So, they're going to be putting it in
into the bank. So, what's the surety for?
Mr. Priest: [Inaudible] There's no surety. If he comes up with a place to do it, if he has that
option, if he wants it, it's just an option. If you can't find a place that's suitable and then goes to
the in-leu fee fund.
Mr. Klein: Well, I mean, how much does he have to put in the bank?
Mr. Owens: He'll have to put the $6,250 in the fund.
Mr. Sprouse: Before he starts construction.
Mr. Klein: So, what I'm saying is, regardless of the mitigation plan, we need an 80% surety.
That's all, regardless of the one they use.
Ms. Strawn: Are you asking for cost per plant or asking for a cost of the property, of the project
or 80% of what we think it would cost to pay into the bank, which would be 5,000, 80% of
$6,250.
Mr. Klein: Yeah. I I'm saying, I'm saying it's 80% of whatever the mitigation plan ends up costing.
Mr. Priest: No.
Mr. Klein: Somebody, somebody has got to come up with a number
Mr. Sprouse: And, and I'm saying, I don't think there's going to be a mitigation plan, unless we
can find a property that they can miti, you know, to put the in-kind on. So, they're going to end
up paying the $6,200 or whatever the number is.
Mr. Priest: Yeah. And they didn't, there's no surety necessarily on the payment to the in-leu fee
fund. We've never required a surety on the payments to the in-lieu fee.
Mr. Owens: Right. I think Mr. Klein was saying that if we did a plan, he wanted it to be 80% of
the cost of the plan, of the mitigation
Mr. Sprouse: Yes. If there is a plan.
Mr. Owens: That's right
Mr. Priest: If there is a plan, if not, then there's no surety required.
Mr. Owens: Just pay the 62 and some change.
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Mr. Klein: Well, but if there's no, if there's no mitigation plan, there is no construction.
Mr. Priest: It goes, it just goes into the in-lieu fee fund.
Mr. Klein: Yeah. Okay. I, under now I'm starting, it's either a mitigation plan or into the bank,
right?
Mr. Sprouse: Yes. Yes.
Mr. Klein: I don't care which one it is. I just want to make sure that the County has, or whatever
governing body has the right to get this to, for this applicant to pay a minimum of 80% of what
any of those plans is going to cost so that he can build his part of the canal.
Mr. Sprouse: But if, but again, if he can't come up, if, if there's some, if there's no property to
develop a plan, then it'd be the 6,200 or whatever that is.
Mr. Klein: Right. Okay. And that's fine.
Mr. Priest: I move the question.
Mr. Owens: Laura, could you poll the board please?
Ms. Walton: Yes. Mr. Priest.
Mr. Priest: Yes.
Ms. Walton: Mr. Sibley.
Mr. Sibley: No, and I would like to say that I think this will come back to us. I don't think that
this is an application that is necessary, and I don't feel like I don't feel like we, I can approve it,
I'm sorry.
Ms. Walton: Ms. Strawn.
Ms. Strawn: Yes.
Ms. Walton: Mr. Klein.
Mr. Klein: Yes.
Ms. Walton: Mr. Sprouse.
Mr. Sprouse: Yes. And, and I think it might come back, but again I think this is the best, I think is
the best way of handling at this point. It's, it's unfortunate that it wasn't finished three years
ago, or we wouldn't be here, but
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Mr. Owens: Mr. Sprouse, if you could confirm the motion was approved as
Mr. Sprouse: I can't hear you.
Mr. Owens: Can you hear me now, Mr. Sprouse?
Mr. Sprouse: Yeah.
Mr. Owens: If just confirm that the motion was approved.
Mr. Sprouse: Motion is approved and a yes. Motion is approved
Mr. Owens: And there's a 10-day waiting period
Mr. Sprouse: And 10 day waiting period. Yep. I'm sorry.
Mr. Owens: Yes.
Mr. Sprouse: You wore me out talking about it. So, the next application VMRC 20-0369 Francis
Weaver.
Mr. Johnson: I'm sorry. I'm sorry. This is Mike. What was the vote count on that?
Mr. Priest: Four to One
Mr. Johnson: Four to One? Okay. I thought you only had four members. Thank you.

VMRC 20-0369, Francis Weaver: Location: York Haven Lane Waterbody: York River
Proposal: Rock Revetment
Mr. Sprouse: No, we have five. The VMRC 20-0369 Francis Weaver, agent Jeff Watkins,
Shoreline Structures. I wanted to let the viewers know that they can call in to (804) 824-2760.
To provide comments during the meeting and also when you do call in, if you can mute your TV
before speaking, I'd appreciate it. Ron, can you go ahead and share your screen and go over the
application?
Mr. Owens: Yes, sir.
Mr. Owens: This is a vicinity map of the proposed project location on the York river off York
Haven Lane. So, 2011, aerial, 2017 areal. This project is to install 110 linear feet of rock
revetment, channel wood of a failing timber bulkhead, six-foot-tall, 12-foot base with core
stone and class two stone over filter fabric.

2496

Mr. Sprouse: So, Ron, when I was at the site, I understood those structures on top of the
bulkhead would be coming down
Mr. Owens: What structure?
Mr. Priest: Gazebo.
Mr. Sprouse: Gazebo
Mr. Owens: Alright. I don't know anything about that. That's so I'm not, that's not in the
Mr. Sprouse: We probably need to get it clarified. If you can go back to the picture. I'm not sure
you can.
multiple speaking: [Inaudible]
Mr. Sprouse: I'm not sure you can do any construction with the gazebo there.
Mr. Owens: So, Mr. Sprouse, let me finish. Let me go through my slides. So, Mr. Watkins is on
the phone he will be able to answer those questions when we get to that point.
Mr. Sprouse: Right
Mr. Owens: The plan view. So, in looking at this plan view, you are correct it appears that they
may have been removed. Your cross section and some site pictures. That's all I have for this
application.
Mr. Sprouse: Does the board have any questions for staff? Laura, if you can go ahead and turn
on the audio and the video for the applicant.
Ms. Walton: Okay.
Mr. Owens: And that will be Laura. That will be (804) 815-0813.
Ms. Walton: Alright, they are unmuted.
Mr. Sprouse: Okay. Jeff, is that Jeff,
Mr. Owens: I believe that's Jeff.
Mr. Watkins: You got me?
Mr. Sprouse: If you want to go ahead and talk about your project.
Mr. Watkins: Can you hear me?
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Mr. Sprouse: We can hear you.
Mr. Watkins: All right, Ron. You're good, man. You got my phone number right, good deal. But
let's see if we can wrap this up less than an hour and a half as the previous one. Alright, I'm
here. I'd be glad to answer any questions. Mr. Chairman, I think you asked about the gazebo.
That's going to be moved and put back.
Mr. Sprouse: Thanks for the clarification.
Mr. Priest: This is Walter.
Mr. Watkins: Hey Walter.
Mr. Priest: Hey, tell me what the groins are there for because the rip rap revetment is going to
stop the erosion. So, what if you are going to build, are they low profile?
Mr. Watkins: They are low profile and they're there to trap some sand that's traveling along
that shoreline to protect, protect the toe of the revetment that's scouring out downstream and
some other projects.
Mr. Priest: There isn't that much sand traveling along there.
Mr. Watkins: There is a lot of sand from the upstream side towards West Point. There's about a
thousand feet of shorelines caving in and there's sand traveling massively because I put three
breakwaters down at the end of that road and they've collected massive, massive, and massive
amounts.
Mr. Priest: Alright, well I didn't, I'm just not particularly enamored with groins
Mr. Watkins: Neither am I, but the shoreline is only a hundred feet. Really can't put a
breakwater on a hundred foot. Hey Mike, are you on? Hey Mike, are you online? Mike Johnson.
Hello?
Mr. Johnson: Yeah, I'm here. Yeah, I'm here. I'm just having trouble clicking for some reason.
Mr. Watkins: Okay. Do you have the, you know, I'm sitting here on a cell phone in my truck? So
are my groin channel or the mean low water.
Mr. Johnson: Yes, sir.
Mr. Watkins: Okay. Thank you.
Mr. Sprouse: So, any other questions for the applicant?

2498

Mr. Priest: Would you think about taking that spur off the downstream groin?
Mr. Watkins: No, sir. They're out on state bottom. I respect you Walter more than anything, you
know, but no, it needs to be done.
Mr. Priest: Okay. I'm just crossing the T's and dotting the I's
Mr. Watkins: I can't hear you. What,
Mr. Priest: I'm dotting the T's and crossing the I's.
Mr. Watkins: I can't hear you.
Mr. Priest: Well, I don't know, I can hear you just fine.
Mr. Watkins: Hello?
Mr. Priest: Uh oh
Mr. Owens: We may be, I'm not sure
Mr. Sprouse: So, do we have any other questions for to Jeff?
Mr. Watkins: Oh, I got, I got somebody. I got ya. Got ya. I'm here.
Mr. Sprouse: Any more questions for Jeff?
Mr. Watkins: Mr. Chairman, I'm here to answer any questions
Mr. Sprouse: And I don't think there are anymore.
Mr. Priest: Alright
Mr. Sprouse: So, I'm going to go ahead and open the public comment period and remind
viewers that they can call 804-824-2760, to provide comments during the meeting. Did you get
any written comments on this, Laura?
Ms. Walton: No, sir.
Mr. Sprouse: I will go ahead and start a five, a five-minute recess for people to call in.
Mr. Sprouse: Portion of the meeting. Laura, did you receive any calls?
Ms. Walton: Um let me just double check. No, I did not.

2499

Mr. Sprouse: So, we're discussing the application among the board. Anyone have any
comments?
Mr. Priest: [Inaudible]
Mr. Sibley: Walter, your mics on
Mr. Priest: Okay, I can't turn it off. I'm on a phone.
Mr. Owens: Laura, if you could turn him off, please. Thank you.
Mr. Sprouse: So, was there any discussion among this? And if not do we have a motion?
Mr. Sibley: I make a motion the application be approved as presented.
Mr. Sprouse: Do I have a second?
Ms. Strawn: I'll second.
Mr. Sprouse: Laura, would you poll the board?
Ms. Walton: Yes. Mr. Klein,
Mr. Owens: Mr. Klein, could you have your video please, oh audio please? Mr. Klein?
Mr. Klein: Yes.
Ms. Walton: Ms. Strawn.
Ms. Strawn: Yes.
Ms. Walton: Mr. Sibley?
Mr. Sibley: Yes.
Ms. Walton: Mr. Priest. Oh, I forgot. He's on mute. Hold on. This is so much fun, Mr. Priest?
Mr. Priest: Yes.
Ms. Walton: All right. And Mr. Sprouse?
Mr. Sprouse: Yes, the Board's approved by a vote of five to zero. The permit will be available.
There's a 10-day waiting period. Thank you very much.
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VMRC 20-0538, Mosby Allmond, Agent: R&W Marine Construction: Location:
Allmondsville Road, Waterbody: York River, Proposal: Revetment
Mr. Sprouse: We'll go to the next application VMRC 20-0538- Mosby Allmond, Agent is R and W
Marine Construction. If there's any viewers that like to call in to provide comments during the
meeting, they can do so, but please mute your TV before calling in and speaking clearly. Ron,
would you go ahead and share your screen and go over the presentation?
Mr. Owens: Yes, sir. This is the vicinity map of the proposed project location on the York river
off of Allmondsville Road. So 2011 aerial, 2013 aerial, 2017 area and a 2019 aerial. This project
is to install 200 linear feet of revetment over filter cloth using class two stone. Project will be
accessed by water. The plan view, cross-section and some site pictures. That's all I have for this
project.
Mr. Sprouse: Any questions for staff? Let's go ahead and get R and W Marine construction
ready to speak.
Ms. Walton: She's unmuted.
Ms. Morgan: This is Laura, and the revetment will be going along the same slope as the bank.
We will be clearing some of the trees and shrubs down at the bottom and we'll be above mean
high water there. Do y'all have any questions for me?
Mr. Sprouse: This is a Rusty Sprouse, I was, well I know it's probably not within the jurisdiction
of the board. I was on the top of the hill and frankly didn't want to stand too close because it
looked like [inaudible] but in that area looking toward the river on the left, I'm not sure how
you're going to be able to construct the profile or the section that you've described because the
lack of material to go behind it.
Ms. Morgan: Well, what we're going to do, what first we're going to remove all of the trees at
the bottom and as we clear that bank a little bit and grade it just enough to put the revetment.
We will have some fill there and we may actually have to add some fill that was kind of the
new. That came up after the project was actually designed, so we may have to bring some fill in
there where that hole is, where the tree fell.
Mr. Sprouse: Ok, does anybody else have any questions?
Ms. Strawn: I'll ask it was clear. I felt the same as you Rusty. When I went out there, I didn't
want to step too close to the edge for the land to giveaway. But yeah, I noticed the breakwaters
on either side, and I wondered if the homeowner considered that as an option and I guess I also
was wondering if those had any effect on what happened on their property in terms of the
erosion.
Ms. Morgan: We actually did consider the option of the breakwaters. Part of the decision
making was a cost factor for the homeowners and the amount of sand that he would have to
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bring in to make that T. I'll be honest. I am not sure if the breakwaters has had an effect on the
homeowner's property.
Ms. Strawn: Thank you.
Mr. Sprouse:
Are there any other questions from the board for the applicant? So, I'll open the comment
period for the public and remind viewers they can call (804) 824-2760 during the meeting.
Laura, do you have any comments that were submitted?
Ms. Walton: No, sir.
Mr. Sprouse: So, we'll go ahead and start the five-minute recess for allowing the public to call
in.
Mr. Sprouse: The public comment and public hearing. Laura, were there any comments that
came in over the phone lines?
Ms. Walton: No, there were no phone calls.
Mr. Sprouse: I'll open up for board discussion?
Ms. Strawn: This looks like a reasonable fix for a very bad problem with erosion that they're
having. So, I would make a motion that the application be approved as submitted.
Mr. Sprouse: Do I have a second?
Mr. Klein: I second
Mr. Sprouse: Laura, would you pull the board?
Ms. Walton: Alright. Ms. Strawn?
Ms. Strawn: Yes.
Mr. Walton: Mr. Priest?
Mr. Priest: Yes.
Ms. Walton: Mr. Klein?
Mr. Klein: Yes.
Ms. Walton: Mr. Sibley?
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Mr. Sibley: Yes.
Ms. Walton: Mr. Sprouse.
Mr. Sprouse: Yes, Let the record show that the application is approved five to zero. There is a
10-day waiting period.
VMRC 20-0772, Alton Birdsall, Agent- Charles Duke- Waterfront Development :
Location: Ware Neck Road; Waterbody: Ware River. Proposal: marsh toe sill.
Mr. Sprouse: The next application is VMRC 20-0772, Alton Birdsall, Agent is Charles Duke Waterfront Development. I'd Like to make sure viewers know that they can call in at (804) 8242760 to provide comments during the meeting. Also, ask the public to mute their TV before
calling in and speak clearly. Ron, would you go ahead and share the screen?
Mr. Owens: Yes, sir. The proposed project location. [inaudible]
Ms. Strawn: I can't hear you very well.
Mr. Owens: Any better? Did it change any Rachel?
Mr. Sprouse: I have a hard time hearing you Ron.
Mr. Owens: Give me one second. Let me, let me have me have a change here something to
happened. Any better now?
Mr. Sprouse: Yes.
Mr. Owens: Alright. So this is the 2011 aerial, 2013, 2017, this project is to construct a marsh
toe sill approximately 145 feet long by two and a half foot tall with a two to one slope, the class
one stone on geotextile fabric that runs parallel to the shore to stabilize the eroding shoreline.
Plan view, cross section and some site pictures. That's all I have for this project.
Mr. Sprouse: Anyone have any questions of staff? Will you go ahead and turn on the audio and
video for Mr. Duke?
Mr. Owens: Laura, if you could turn Mr. Duke's audio on? I think they went off so, if you could
turn it on.
Ms. Walton: I'm trying to, his name keeps popping around on the list.
Mr. Sprouse: There he is.
Mr. Duke: I'm here. Can you all hear me?
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Mr. Sprouse: We can
Mr. Owens: Go ahead Charles, we are waiting on you.
Mr. Duke: Okay. And so pretty straightforward. We've proposed three separate sills on his
property line there trying to protect the most severely eroding shoreline that he has. I think he
would like to do the whole shoreline, but at this time money precludes that. So, I I'll be happy
to answer any questions.
Mr. Sprouse: Are there any questions for Mr. Duke?
Mr. Klein: Charles, are you planning plantings?
Mr. Duke: No, sir. We did not include any plantings or beach nourishment that close proximity
of the sills to the marsh I feel will naturally induce that.
Mr. Klein: Okay. I've, I haven't seen a lot of rocks that sprout grass, but maybe it happens.
Mr. Duke: I don't, I don't think the rocks actually sprout the grass, the rocks trap, the sand
behind it, and then the grass sprouts naturally.
Mr. Klein: Okay.
Mr. Sprouse: Any other question for Mr. Duke? Did the is the owner also on the line and want
to make a comment or?
Mr. Duke: I do not think so. No, sir.
Mr. Sprouse: Okay. Thank you. So, I'm going to go ahead and open the public comment period
and remind viewers that they can call (804) 824-2760 any time during the meeting, Laura, do
you have any written comments that were submitted prior to the meeting?
Ms. Walton: No, sir.
Mr. Sprouse: So, we'll go ahead and start our five-minute recess to let the public call
Mr. Sprouse: Public comment and the public hearing. Laura, were there any comments that
came in on the phone line?
Ms. Walton: No, sir.
Mr. Sprouse: I'll go ahead and open the application up for discussion with the board. I was out
there, and it looked like they had tried several times before to do various things. It's also
gabions out there, but the erosion was continuing. Go ahead, Rick.
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Mr. Klein: No, I was just going to make a motion that it'd be, it'd be approved as submitted.
Mr. Sprouse: Do I have a second?
Ms. Strawn: I'll second.
Mr. Sprouse: Laura, can you poll the Board?
Ms. Walton: Sorry. My mouse wasn't working very well. Mr. Sibley?
Mr. Sibley: Yes.
Ms. Walton: Ms. Strawn.
Ms. Strawn: Yes.
Ms. Walton: Mr. Priest.
Mr. Priest: Yes.
Ms. Walton: Mr. Klein.
Mr. Klein: Yes.
Ms. Walton: Mr. Sprouse.
Mr. Sprouse: Yes. Let the record shows approved five to zero. There's a 10-day waiting period.
That concludes the hearings that we had for tonight for the Wetlands Board .
IN RE: NEW BUSINESS
There was no new business.
IN RE: OLD BUSINESS
There was no old business.
IN RE: ANNOUNCEMENTS
Mr. Owens informed the Board of the
STANDARD FORM LETTERS FOR PERMITTED USE:
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IN RE: ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business to come before the Board the meeting was adjourned.

___________________________
Norman Sibley, Secretary
Gloucester Co. Wetlands Board

________________________________
John R. Sprouse, Chairman
Gloucester Co. Wetlands Board

July 8th, 2020
Approval Date

2506

